
 

 

MEETING AGENDA 
Mechanic Falls Town Council 

Nov. 4, 2019 
6:30pm  

I.  Call Meeting to Order                                                                                     Time: _______________           
II. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

III. Roll Call      Councilors Absent: ____________________________ 

IV.  General Reports 
4.1 Meeting Minutes for Oct.7 Motion and approve 

4.2 Department Reports as Submitted Motion and approve 

V. Public Hearings     
5.1 Liquor License: Village Pizza  

VI. Comments from the Public   (5 Minutes Each – 30 Minutes Max) 
VII.  Old Business       Notes: 

7.1 Codes Review Agent  

7.2 Governance & Codification Informational 
7.3 22 Pleasant St Update Informational 

VIII.  New Business        Notes: 
8.1 Registrar accepting new voters Motion to approve 

8.2 Processing Absentees on Election Day Motion to approve 

8.3 Appointment of Elections Clerks Motion to approve Preston, Emery & Petersons 
8.4 Notice: DOT Spot Improvement Informational 
8.5 Andro PSAP & Dispatch Contract renewal Motion to approve 

8.6 Water Dept Budget Meeting Schedule Wed. Nov 20th @ 6:30pm at the Water Department Office 

8.7 Historical Society Discussion 

8.8 Authorization of Bank account access Motion to approve 

8.9 PD Union Negotiation Liaison Choose 1 Council Member 
8.10 Council Long-Range Planning Discussion 

IX.  Ordinances, Resolves Policies & Licenses    Notes: 
9.1 Liquor License: Village Pizza Motion to Approve 

9.2 Conflict of Interest Resolution Third Reading 

9.3 Transparency in Action Resolution Third Reading 

9.4 Council Qualifications Resolution Third Reading 

9.5 Town Manager Role Resolution Third Reading 

9.6 Poverty Abatement  

9.7 Office Closure: Veterans Day Monday November 11 

9.8 Office Closure: Thanksgiving Half Day Wed Nov.27 - Closed Nov 28 & 29 

X.  Executive Session    Notes:  None 
10.1  Executive Session: Poverty Abatement Title 1 M.R.S.A. Section 405(6) Sub-section C 

 



 

 

XI.  Adjourn  Time: _______________    Next Meeting: (Dec. 4th, 6:30pm – Second Floor Conference) 



Mechanic Falls Town Council 
October 7, 2019 

 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  
Cathy Fifield, Chair 
Wayne Hackett, Vice Chair 

Nicholas Konstantoulakis 
John Emery II 

Kieth Bennett 

 
 
STAFF PRESENT: 
Zakk Maher – Town Manager   Lisa Prevost-Treasurer   
Julie Ward – Town Clerk              Steve Turner-Transfer Station            
John Rowe-Public Works 
 
OTHERS PRESENT: 
 
Milton Walker  Walter Berry  Eriks Petersons-Sun Journal  Lori Vadeboncoeur 
Mark Elliott  Penny Emery  Bobbi Jo Nugent   Jimmy Vadeboncoeur 
Martha Yates  Sandra Ballard Tim Nugent    Charles Vincent 
Rena Berry  Donald Boyd  Catherine Pressey   Laurie Crane Turton 
Pam Doyle  Victoria Cleary  Valerie Emery    Brenda Coleman 
William Herrick  Randal Madore  Dorothy Bouchles 
 
  
1.0 Councilor Hackett called the meeting to order at 6:31pm. 
2.0 We stood and saluted the flag. 
3.0 Roll Call complete, all Council Members present (Councilor Fifield late @ 6:35pm) 
 
4.0 General Reports: 
 

     4.1 Council Meeting Minutes for September 3rd, 16th, 23rd, 2019 
 
Councilor Konstantoulakis moves to accept all the September minutes as written, seconded by Councilor 
Bennett and voted to accept by unanimous vote. 
 

4.2 Municipal Financial Reports 
Councilor Bennett moves to accept the Financial Reports as submitted, seconded by Councilor Emery.  All in 
favor, so voted. 
 
 
5.0 Public Hearings: Liquor License: Little Brick Pub 
 
No Comments from the public 

 
6.0 Comments from the Public:  
 
Catherine Pressey expressed her concern again regarding the fence on the corner of North Main and Bucknam 
Street and said that it shouldn’t be the CEO’s responsibility since the fence sits on a public way, it should be left 
up to the council to determine if the fence should be removed. 
 
Steve Turner of True Street wanted to know if we could post the meetings in more places to inform the towns 
people about monthly meetings. 
 
 



Town Council 
October 7, 2019 
Page 2 of 3 
 
Penny Emery of Clifford Street said the sign outside is very hard to read while you are driving by and wondered if 
we could post stuff of the Facebook page. 
 
7.0 Old Business: 

 
7.1 Legal Question: Council Quorum 
 

Milton Walker of Riverside Drive doesn’t think there is a problem with 3 council members on the Sanitary District 
Trustee Board.  There seems to be no one that wants to hold a seat on that board. Councilor Konstantoulakis 
suggested to wait until Spring and see if people still have an issue.  Councilor Bennett agreed that he felt like there 
would be no issue with the members staying on the board.   Sandra Ballard of Clifford Street suggested to leave 
as is.  

 
7.2 Planning Board Member Appointment 
 

It came to Town Manager Zakk Maher that the appointment of Lou Annance was done via email in June of 2018 
and wanted to correct the issue. Councilor Hackett motioned to appoint Lou Annance to the Planning Board, 
seconded by Councilor Konstantoulakis, all in favor so voted.  Mr. Annance’s term will begin October 2019. 

 
 

 
8.0 New Business: 
 

8.1 IPAD donation to Pink Feather 
 

Councilor Emery motioned to donate 4 IPADs to Pink Feather Foundation, seconded by Councilor Bennett, all in 
favor, so voted. 

 
8.2 Spirit of America Award- Gary Purington 

 
Town Manager Zakk Maher asked if any of the Councilors would be interested in going to the Spirit of America 
award since Gary Purington was receiving this year.  Councilor Fifield and Councilor Konstantoulakis will attend. 

 
8.3 Vehicle Registration Fee Increase. 
 

The legislation passed an increase of $2.00 for BMV Agent fees, Councilor Hackett motioned to increase the fees 
by $2.00, seconded by Councilor Konstantoulakis, all in favor so voted, effective immediately. 
 

8.4 GA Maximums 
 
Councilor Konstantoulakis motioned to approve the 2019-2020 GA Maximums set by the state, Councilor Bennett 
seconded, all in favor sot voted. 

 
 
8.5 Codes Review 

 
The individual that agreed to look at the codes and ordinance’s felt there were too many contradicting ordinance’s 
regarding code in the town. Town Manager Zakk Maher is still working on agents, and will also gather pricing.   
There is a company that will come in and review the towns ordinance and flag any that they feel should be 
reviewed but it would cost between $10,000-$12,000.  It might have to go out to vote for residents to agree.  

 
 



Town Council 
October 7, 2019 
Page 3 of 3 
 

 
 
9.0 Ordinances, Resolves & Licenses: 
 

9.1 Liquor License: Little Brick Pub 
 
Councilor Hackett motioned to approve Little Brick Pub’s Liquor License, seconded by Councilor Bennett, all in 
favor so voted. 
 
 

9.2 Abatement request 
 
Five abatement requests were issued to the Tax office.  Philip Ritchie was due to receive the Homestead 
exemption and it was not applied to his 2020 taxes; his abatement request was for $398.00.  Councilor 
Konstantoulakis motioned to approve the request, seconded by Councilor Emery, all in favor, unanimous. 
 
Second Request was submitted by O’Donnell & Associate’s for a Personal Property error for Auburn 
Manufacturing.   O’Donnell is requesting $1497.72 due to calculation error made.  Councilor Hackett motioned to 
approve the abatement, seconded by Councilor Konstantoulakis, all in favor, so voted. 
 
Third request was for Natalie and Rudolph Kyllonen requesting an abatement for a pool that was removed years 
ago, but still be assessed for.   Councilor Konstantoulakis motioned to deny the request seconded by Councilor 
Emery, all in favor, so voted. 
 
Fourth request was submitted by O’Donnell & Associates as well for Rhonda and David Huskins.   The Huskins’s 
purchased a foreclosed property from the Town in 2018 with the intentions of demoing the building.   No Demo 
permit was issued and resident.  The requested amount was $1027.22.  Councilor Konstantoulakis motioned to 
accept the abatement, seconded by Councilor Emery, all in favor, unanimous. 
 
Fifth request was also from O’Donnell & Associates for the Estate of Brenda Cronin, Brent Wyman reached out 
to the assessor requesting to look at the home because he felt that it should be condemned and was looking for 
some tax relief.  Councilor Hackett motioned to deny the request, seconded by Councilor Bennett, all in favor so 
voted. 
 
9.3 Draft: Conflict of Interest Resolution: 
9.4 Draft Transparency in Action 
9.5 Draft: Councilor Qualifications 
9.6 Draft: Town Manager Role 
 
Councilor Hackett mentioned that Town Attorney Jack Conway recommended not signing the four draft items.  
Councilor Fifield recommended they go to a work shop on October 15 in Bridgton that MMA was teaching.  All 
councilors agreed they would attend with Town Manager. 
 
Councilor Hackett motioned to table all items until the next meeting, seconded by Councilor Konstantoulakis, all 
in favor so voted. 
 
10.0 Executive Session: NONE 
11.0 Adjourn: 
 
Councilor Konstantoulakis motioned to adjourn, Seconded by Councilor Bennett.  All in favor, so voted.  Meeting 
adjourned 7:45pm 
 













Notes to the Financial Reports   
10/29/2019 
Revenues should be at approximately 33% collected and per the report we are 49.30% collected.  We 
have already received a payment from the State for 75% of the total Homestead exemption money we 
are expecting for the year.   We received the first half year payment for franchise fees.  We have also 
collected the money from the sale of the foreclosed properties.   We did not budge that money as it was 
unknown how much if anything we would get.  These items are making the percentage higher.    
Expenditures should also be at approximately 33%.  Per the attached report you can see that we are 
currently at 40.84% expended.   As you look down through the individual budgets, you will see some 
that are already more than 33% expended but some items are due in full or at least half due at the 
beginning of the fiscal year.  For instance, Trio software maintenance and licensing, property and 
casualty insurance and half a year of animal shelter fees.  Also, a half year of dispatching for fire, rescue 
and police are due at the beginning of the year and we have paid the County Tax bill for the year making 
that budget 100% expended.   I have also moved the majority of the CIP money to the reserve accounts, 
making that line 91% expended.   
You will notice the line Municipal Complex operating supplies with a $6,100 negative balance.  As you 
remember, we eliminated the municipal complex budget and distributed those expenses over the other 
budgets.  This line is fuel that has been purchased for use by the Town departments but hasn’t yet been 
distributed to the budgets that use fuel.  I distribute the costs quarterly, so theoretically, this cost will be 
distributed to the over departments on a quarterly basis.  Of course, since we never let the gas tanks go 
empty, there will always be a balance in this line.   
As always, if you have any questions, please feel free to ask me.   
 
Lisa Prevost 
Finance Director 
lprevost@mechanicfalls.org 
 



Account Name Amount Interest Paid In Paid Out New Balance Owed to Real Balance Int Matures
Town rate

7/1/2019 -$                  -$                 9/30/2019 9/30/2019

One year CD 151,157.57$       579.41$        151,736.98$       151,736.98$     1.65% 10/17/2019
Cash Mgmt/Reserve accts 1,371,868.88$    2,345.41$     7,967.42$        1,366,246.87$    1,366,246.87$  
Mutual Fund 12,124.27$         35.63$          12,159.90$         12,159.90$       1.14% 10/4/2021

-$                 
-$                  -$                   

Total 1,535,150.72$    2,960.45$     -$                  7,967.42$        1,530,143.75$    $0.00 1,530,143.75$  

Reserve Account Balances
As of 9/30/2019

Town of Mechanic Falls



Tax Commitment 2019/2020 Collected Thru % Collected
10/28/2019

$3,088,033.47 $1,511,338.77 48.94%

Total Town Budget $2,729,336.00
Total RSU Assessment $1,645,440.00
TIF District $0.00
Total Budget $4,374,776.00

Homestead Exemption $165,347.00
BETE Reimbursement $18,510.00
Total Anticipated Non Tax
Revenues $942,040.00
From Fund Balance $185,000.00
Total Anticipated Tax 
Revenues $3,088,033.00
Total Revenues $4,398,930.00

Overlay $24,154.00



Town Reserve Accounts
As of 9/30/2019

7/1/2019 9/30/2019 9/30/2019
Beginning Balance Paid In Paid Out Interest New Balance Owed to Town Ending Balance

Cash Management $98,162.29 $185.70 $98,347.99 $98,347.99
Computer Reserve $13,016.99 $25.16 $13,042.15 $13,042.15
Unemployment Fund $64,371.29 $121.75 $64,493.04 $64,493.04
Municipal Complex $25,096.98 $2,597.16 $47.07 $22,546.89 $0.00 $22,546.89
Fire/Rescue Funds $91,838.38 $138.98 $91,977.36 $91,977.36
Highway Funds $332,172.62 $502.70 $332,675.32 $332,675.32
Solid Waste $30,971.88 $46.87 $31,018.75 $31,018.75
Assessing $75,386.25 $114.08 $75,500.33 $75,500.33
Library Computers $1,212.70 $2.34 $1,215.04 $1,215.04
Recreation $412.90 $0.79 $413.69 $413.69
BAN Escrow $394,356.85 $745.95 $395,102.80 $395,102.80
Winterbrook Escrow $12,149.48 $18.39 $12,167.87 $12,167.87
Police Cruiser $22,423.84 $33.95 $22,457.79 $22,457.79
Police Training $24,371.78 $46.10 $24,417.88 $24,417.88
Debt Service $40,215.01 $76.07 $40,291.08 $40,291.08
Sidewalks $82,724.09 $125.19 $82,849.28 $82,849.28
MFPD Forfeiture $2,851.67 $5.51 $2,857.18 $2,857.18
Insurance Reimb $60,133.88 $5,370.26 $108.81 $54,872.43 $54,872.43

Totals $1,371,868.88 $0.00 $7,967.42 $2,345.41 $1,366,246.87 $0.00 $1,366,246.87































 
 
 

MECHANIC FALLS POLICE DEPARMENT 
 
 
 
 

 
 
CRIMINAL SUMMONSES:     24 
 
 
CIVIL SUMMONSES:       1 
 
 
  
 2          JUVENILE(S) CHARGED W/ JUVENILE  CRIME 
 
 16 ADULT(S) CHARGED w/ CRIMINAL OFFENSE(S) 
 
 
 

BACK-UP ANALYSIS 
 

 
 MECHANIC FALLS PD ASSISTED ASO:   10 

 ASO ASSISTED MECHANIC FALLS PD:   12 

 

 MECHANIC FALLS PD ASSISTED OXFORD PD: 03 

 OXFORD PD ASSISTED MECHANIC FALLS PD: 01 

 

 MECHANIC FALLS PD ASSISTED STATE POLICE 00 

 STATE POLICE ASSISTED MECHANIC FALLS P D 01 

   

2017 FORD:      46,856 

2016 FORD:      65,823 

  

              October 1, 2019 THRU October 28, 2019 

 

 

 

 
 

 
    

 
  



POLICE HIGHLIGHTS 
10/1/19 – 10/28/19 

 
TYPE OF CALL  CALLS THIS MONTH  LAST MONTH 
Abandoned E911     8     12 
Accidents      9     12 
Alarm calls      5     7 
Animal complaints     11     8 
Assault      4     0    
Burglary      1     0 
Children troubles     2     4 
Criminal mischief     2     6 
Disturbance/disorder/fight   0     2 
Domestic      2     5  
Harassment      4     1 
Hazardous condition    3     4 
Missing person     1     1 
Parking violations     1     0 
Suspicious conditions/person/vehicle  8     25 
Theft       4     5 
Threatening      4     2 
Wellbeing check     1     6 
 
 
Arrests/summons issued this month for: Operating under the influence, Refusing to submit to 
arrest, Disorderly conduct, Operating after habitual offender revocation, Theft by unauthorized 
taking, Operating after suspension, Failure to register vehicle, Violating conditions of release, 
Criminal speed, Attaching false plates, Domestic violence aggravated assault – strangulation, 
Obstructing report of a crime, Criminal trespass, Domestic violence assault, Possession of 
marijuana by a person under 21 years of age, Eluding an officer, Driving to endanger, Assault, 
and Criminal mischief. 
 
Traffic summons issued this month for: Speeding 1-9, 10-14, 15-19, and 20-24 mph over the 
limit, Failure to produce evidence of insurance, Failure to stop at stop sign, Operating after 
suspension, Imprudent speed, and Failure to notify state of name/address change.  



MONTHLY REPORT FOR OCTOBER 2019 
MECHANIC FALLS PUBLIC WORKS DEPT. 

SUBMMITED BY SCOTT R. PENNEY, FOREMAN 
 
TUES***10/1/19 
Work on #3 rear axle studs that are broke, dig on Lane road looking for 
more sand, go to town with skidsteer tires to be changed, get saw 
blades and light for little garage. 
WED***10/2/19 
Put #3 back together, ditch on Lane Road rest of day. 
THURS***10/3/19 
Work on Thunder Road entrance, haul gravel to site, excavate, mow 
ballfields, clean catch basins. 
MON***10/7/19 
Start to haul winter sand from Hebron, going to take awhile, 14 miles 
round trip. 
WED***10/8/19 
Haul winter sand, #14 oil pan springs bad leak, rent dump truck till oil 
pan comes in. 
THURS***10/9/19 
Haul winter sand after installing new oil pan on #14. 
MON***10/14/19 
Haul winter sand all day, push up pile with dozer. 
TUES***10/15/19 
Haul winter sand. 
WED***10/16/19 
Haul winter sand, mow ballfield. 
THURS***10/17/19 
Big rain storm and wind, plugged catch basins and ditches. 
Deal with storm all day. 
MON***10/21/19 
Haul sand all day, Poland helps with a couple trucks. 
TUES***10/22/19 



Finish up winter sand, 3,500 yds all piled up mixed with 190 tons of salt. 
WED***10/23/19 
Do maintenance on trucks, grease, oil changes, work on plow frames, 
do dump run, take dozer back to transfer station. 
THURS***10/24/19 
Work on washout down back, big hole, put spinners on, another plow 
frame, paint frames, clean catch basins. 
MON***10/28/19 
Work on wiring for new plow lights on #14, move summer stuff into 
storage and winter equipment out, steam skidsteer, new cutting edge 
on snowblower, v plow for pickup, build ramp for loading trucks at 
sandpile. 
TUES***10/29/19 
Bring in sweeper and winterize it and put away outside, dig up gravel at 
borrow pit by transfer station and take over to snowmobile club. 
Smooth up area, push up metal pile, haul more oil down. 
WED***10/30/19 
Suck up leaves around town, patch areas all over, take the bushog to 
transfer and store for winter. 
THURS***10/31/19 
Mulch leaves in parks, last time, put sander in pickup and get ready for 
winta, clean shop, work on washout down back, put in a catch basin so 
it will not washout anymore. 
Thanks, Scott 



 1

 
 MECHANIC FALLS WATER DEPT. 

     62 HIGHLAND AVE. 
MECHANIC FALLS, MAINE  04256 

 
TEL:  345-5351 

TO:    Town Manager 
 
FROM: Stephen L. French, Superintendent  
 
DATE    October 2019 
 
RE Monthly Report 
 
Town Manager and Council,  
 
The Poland Trailer park project continues to be our main topic. The main is in, 
tests have been completed and our water is to their pumping station. The 
plumbing is almost complete to connect to our water. We can supply about 
thirteen pounds to the park where they need to boost the pressure to a more 
serviceable pressure. The residents we have spoken to are anxious for “quality” 
water. The tank has given us problems passing the bacteria test. There is no e-
coli present, but there is still coli form bacteria. It isn’t a harmful bacteria only an 
indicator bacteria. We will re-chlorinate the tank and re-test the water. There 
was some rather difficult paperwork that went along with this project. Michelle 
stayed on top of it and received very positive comments from the CDBG 
representative. There will be some close out paperwork shortly. I have been in 
contact with the engineer. We are concerned that we might need a valve pit in 
front of the tank. We have an issue where the tank overflows before the pump 
shuts off. We had the same problem with our Southview tank and had to install 
a valve pit there. We can solve the problem by only opening the main valve 
slightly. But that isn’t a proper fix. We will know shortly if there is enough CDBG 
money left for this. The two new hydrants have been accepted and we will start 
to bill Poland for them. Part of this project included grant money from the State 
Drinking Water program to connect the park to our system. We cannot collect 
any of this money until the park is on our system and disconnected from their 
wells. 
 
I received permission from you to pull the main pump for repairs and install a 
generator at the pumping station. These two projects haven’t been 
accomplished yet. With the trailer park job being difficult I didn’t want to have 
any cash flow problems. I have since found out that the yearly EMA 
(Emergency Management Agency) grants could provide us with the generator 
we need. I would like to get the generator installed first. So this project will be 
pushed back until we apply for the EMA grant. We probably will not hear from 
them until late fall of 2020. When these two projects are completed we will have 
a more efficient main pump and a generator system that will be able to support 



 2

both our main pump and our back up pump along with all the power the station 
requires. 
 
We have our fall chores done, so bring on the snow!!! You know I really didn’t 
mean that!!! 
  

  
Steve French      



           Town of Mechanic Falls 
                                         108 Lewiston Street 
                                   Mechanic Falls, ME  04256 
                             Phone: 345-2871    FAX: 345-9201 
                                      www.MechanicFalls.org 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Codes Review Agents 
 

Robert Overton 
 
_______Work History______ 
Director of Code Enforcement 
City of Augusta 
 

 

 
 



           Town of Mechanic Falls 
                                         108 Lewiston Street 
                                   Mechanic Falls, ME  04256 
                             Phone: 345-2871    FAX: 345-9201 
                                      www.MechanicFalls.org 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Governance & Codification 
 
Conducted preliminary interviews with staff at General Code. Will begin the process by scanning all 
relevant files into useable PDF documents. Preliminary scanning done by in-house staff is needed to 
generate an accurate page count and quote for services.  
 

 
 
 

General Governance & Policy  
Page Estimate 

Document Page Count 
Land Use 150 
Charter 18 
Com Membership 2 
Rules of Order (Bylaws) 8 
ISO Policy 12 
Past Meeting Minutes 1440 
Various Ordinances 1260 
Personnel Policy 20 

  
Total= 2910 























           Town of Mechanic Falls 
                                         108 Lewiston Street 
                                   Mechanic Falls, ME  04256 
                             Phone: 345-2871    FAX: 345-9201 
                                      www.MechanicFalls.org 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Bank Account Access 
 

1. Motion to remove Fred Collins from the Mechanic Falls Santa Program account located at Dirigo 
Credit Union and to approve and add Julie Ward and Michelle Emery to that same account. 
 

2. Motion to remove Fred Collins from the Mechanic Falls Homecoming (Community Day) account 
located at Dirigo Credit Union and to approve and add Ashley Cleaves to that same account. 
 



           Town of Mechanic Falls 
                                         108 Lewiston Street 
                                   Mechanic Falls, ME  04256 
                             Phone: 345-2871    FAX: 345-9201 
                                      www.MechanicFalls.org 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

A Resolution of the Mechanic Falls Town Council 
November 2019 

 
SUBJECT:   Conflict of Interest & Notice of Personal Gain 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Title 30-A Part 2 Subpart 3 Chapter 123 Subchapter1 section 2605-6: Conflicts of Interest  
Every municipal and county official shall attempt to avoid the appearance of a conflict of interest by disclosure or 
by abstention. 
 
BE IT KNOWN: 
 
The Mechanic Falls Town Council believes that the appearance of a conflict of interest or personal gain by 
members of the Town Council or appointed members of town committees, where their duties are subject to the 
provisions of state statute, Town Charter and Town Council Rules of Order, will be disclosed publicly and 
interested parties will abstain from any discussion or vote relating to the identified conflict.  
 
Therefore, the Town Council approves the following Resolution.  
 
RESOLUTION 
 
WHEREAS  It would be a violation of the public trust for Municipal Officials to receive any direct or indirect 

pecuniary interest, aside from their budgetarily approved stipend, due to their status as a 
municipal official ; and 

 
WHEREAS  In the absence of actual fraud, an official of a body of the municipality, county government or a 

quasi-municipal corporation involved in a question or in the negotiation or award of a contract is 
deemed to have a direct or indirect pecuniary interest in a question or in a contract where the 
official is an officer, director, partner, associate, employee or stockholder of a private corporation, 
business or other economic entity to which the question relates or with which the unit of 
municipal, county government or the quasi-municipal corporation contracts only where the 
official is directly or indirectly the owner of at least 10% of the stock of the private corporation or 
owns at least a 10% interest in the business or other economic entity (Title 30-A Part 2 Subpart 3 
Chapter 123 Subchapter1 section 2605-4); and 

 
WHEREAS When an official is deemed to have a direct or indirect pecuniary interest, the vote on the question 

or the contract is not voidable and actionable if the official makes full disclosure of interest before 
any action is taken and if the official abstains from voting, from the negotiation or award of the 
contract and from otherwise attempting to influence a decision in which that official has an 
interest. The official's disclosure and a notice of abstention from taking part in a decision in 
which the official has an interest shall be recorded with the clerk or secretary of the municipal or 
county government or the quasi-municipal corporation (Title 30-A Part 2 Subpart 3 Chapter 123 
Subchapter1 section 2605-4); and 

 



           Town of Mechanic Falls 
                                         108 Lewiston Street 
                                   Mechanic Falls, ME  04256 
                             Phone: 345-2871    FAX: 345-9201 
                                      www.MechanicFalls.org 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

WHEREAS Nepotism is recognized as the practice among those with power or influence of favoring relatives 
or friends, especially in regard to employment or awarding of contracts; and 
 

WHEREAS Council members and appointed committee members of the Town of Mechanic Falls  agree to 
abstain from any vote or use of influence for their own personal gain or that of their friends or 
relatives.  

 
 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Mechanic Falls Town Council supports the aforementioned 
resolutions as it applies to the declaration of conflict of interests or personal gain of Town Officials while 
conducting the people’s business of the Town of Mechanic Falls.    
 

 Adopted this 4th day of November 2019. 
 

_____________________________________ 
Cathy Fifield, Council Chair 

 
____________________________________  _____________________________________  
John Emery II, Council Member     Wayne Hackett, Council Vice-Chair  
  
____________________________________  _____________________________________  
Kieth Bennett, Council Member    Nick Konstantoulakis, Council Member   
 
 
 



           Town of Mechanic Falls 
                                         108 Lewiston Street 
                                   Mechanic Falls, ME  04256 
                             Phone: 345-2871    FAX: 345-9201 
                                      www.MechanicFalls.org 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

A Resolution of the Mechanic Falls Town Council 
November 2019 

 
SUBJECT:   Transparency in Action 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Title 1 M.R.S.A. §401. Declaration of public policy; rules of construction 
The Legislature finds and declares that public proceedings exist to aid in the conduct of the people's business. It is 
the intent of the Legislature that their actions be taken openly and that the records of their actions be open to 
public inspection and their deliberations be conducted openly. It is further the intent of the Legislature that 
clandestine meetings, conferences or meetings held on private property without proper notice and ample 
opportunity for attendance by the public not be used to defeat the purposes of this subchapter. [1975, c. 
758, (RPR).] 
 
BE IT KNOWN: 
 
The Mechanic Falls Town Council believes that all municipal activity, where it is subject to the provisions of the 
Freedom of Access law, Town Charter or Town Council Rules of Order, shall be conducted in an open and 
transparent manner. 
 
Therefore, the Town Council approves the following Resolution.  
 
RESOLUTION 
 
WHEREAS  All meetings of 3 or more Council members will be advertised no less than 5 days prior (Town 

Charter Article 2, Section 7-B); and 
 
WHEREAS  All meetings of 3 or more Council members will be recorded, broadcast and posted for public 

viewing (Motion passed by Town Council Oct. 1, 2018); and 
 
WHEREAS All written or recorded communications between Council members will be made available to the 

public upon request under the Freedom of Access Act (FOAA), unless such information would 
qualify as a “Public Records Exemption” as defined by (Title 1 Chapter 13 M.R.S.A. Sec. 431-1; 
and 

   
WHEREAS The Council shall not use electronic communications such as fax, email, texting, etc… for 

municipal business (Mechanic Falls Town Council Rules of Order section 6.2); and 
 
WHEREAS Individual Council members shall share with all Council members any written correspondence 

that is Town-related and not personal in nature (Mechanic Falls Town Council Rules of Order 
section 6.2); and 
 

WHEREAS Attempts to violate any express prohibitions of the Town Charter or defeat the purpose of the 
Freedom of Access Act would be recognized as malfeasance as outlined in the Mechanic Falls 



           Town of Mechanic Falls 
                                         108 Lewiston Street 
                                   Mechanic Falls, ME  04256 
                             Phone: 345-2871    FAX: 345-9201 
                                      www.MechanicFalls.org 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Town Council Rules of Order section 1.5; and  
 

WHEREAS Members found to have committed malfeasance as outlined in the Mechanic Falls Town Council 
Rules of Order section 1.5 would be subject to the removal from office process outlined in Article 
2, Section 2 part C-2 of the Town Charter. 

 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Mechanic Falls Town Council supports the aforementioned 
resolutions as it applies to transparency while conducting the people’s business of the Town of Mechanic Falls.    
 

 Adopted this 4th day of November 2019. 
 

_____________________________________ 
Cathy Fifield, Council Chair 

 
____________________________________  _____________________________________  
John Emery II, Council Member     Wayne Hackett, Council Vice-Chair  
  
____________________________________  _____________________________________  
Kieth Bennett, Council Member    Nick Konstantoulakis, Council Member   
 
 
 



           Town of Mechanic Falls 
                                         108 Lewiston Street 
                                   Mechanic Falls, ME  04256 
                             Phone: 345-2871    FAX: 345-9201 
                                      www.MechanicFalls.org 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

A Resolution of the Mechanic Falls Town Council 
November 2019 

 
SUBJECT:   Qualification of Its Members 
 
BACKGROUND  
 
Mechanic Falls Town Charter Adopted 2010 – Amended 2019 
Article 2, Section 6: COUNCIL TO JUDGE OF QUALIFICA TIONS OF ITS MEMBERS. 
The Council shall be the judge of the election and qualifications of its members and for such purpose shall have 
power to subpoena witnesses and require production of records, but the decision of the Council in any such case 
shall be subject to review of the courts. 
 
BE IT KNOWN: 
 
The Mechanic Falls Town Council believes that the qualification of Town Council members, where it is subject to 
the provisions of state statute, Town Charter and Town Council Rules of Order, clearly represents an expectation 
that Council members perform their duties to the best of their abilities and in good faith. 
 
Therefore, the Town Council approves the following Resolution.  
 
RESOLUTION 
 
WHEREAS  Councilors shall be qualified voters of the Town and shall reside in the Town during their term of 

office (Town Charter Article 2, Section 2-A); and 
 
WHEREAS  Each Councilor's term shall be for a term of three years and until his successor is elected and 

qualified (Town Charter Article 2, Section 1-B); and 
 
WHEREAS No Councilor shall serve more than three consecutive terms in office except that, after a 

Councilor has been out of office for at least one full year following the end of the most recent 
term to which he or she was elected, he or she may again serve for up to three consecutive terms 
in office (Town Charter Article 2, Section 1-C); and 

 
WHEREAS Except where otherwise allowed by law, or pursuant to an agreement under the Interlocal 

Cooperation Act, no Councilor shall hold other Town office or full-time or permanent part-time 
Town employment during the term for which they were elected to the Council, With the 
exception of the Fire and Rescue Chiefs, membership in the Mechanic Falls Fire and Rescue 
Departments, alone, shall not be grounds for disqualification from holding office as a Councilor.    
(Town Charter Article 2, Section 2-B); and 
 

WHEREAS No Councilor shall lack at any time during their term of office any qualification for the office 
prescribed by the Charter or by law (Town Charter Article 2, Section 2 part C-1); and  

 



           Town of Mechanic Falls 
                                         108 Lewiston Street 
                                   Mechanic Falls, ME  04256 
                             Phone: 345-2871    FAX: 345-9201 
                                      www.MechanicFalls.org 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

WHEREAS No Councilor shall have violated any express prohibition of the Town Charter (Town Charter 
Article 2, Section 2 part C-1); and 

 
WHEREAS No Councilor shall have been convicted of a felony or other crime or offense involving moral 

turpitude (Town Charter Article 2, Section 2 part C-1); and 
 
WHEREAS No Councilor shall have failed to attend three (3) consecutive regular meetings of the Council 

without being excused for due cause by the Council (Town Charter Article 2, Section 2 part C-1); 
and 

 
WHEREAS All Councilors shall complete a course of training relating to public records and proceedings. The 

official shall complete the training not later than the 120th day after the date the elected official 
takes the oath of office to assume the person's duties as an elected official (Title 1 Chapter 13 
M.R.S.A. Sec. 412); and 

 
WHEREAS All Councilors recognize the importance of completing a National incident Management Systems 

(NIMS) training seminar that is sanctioned by FEMA and hosted by Androscoggin Emergency 
Management. The official shall complete the training not later than the 120th day after the date 
the elected official takes the oath of office to assume the person's duties as an elected official; and 

 
WHEREAS All Councilors recognize the importance of completing an Elected Officials training sponsored by 

the Maine Municipal Association not later than the 120th day after the date the elected official 
takes the oath of office to assume the person's duties as an elected official. 

 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED , that the Mechanic Falls Town Council supports the aforementioned 
resolutions as it applies to the qualifications of the Town Council while conducting the people’s business of the 
Town of Mechanic Falls.    
 

 Adopted this 4th day of November 2019. 
 

_____________________________________ 
Cathy Fifield, Council Chair 

 
____________________________________  _____________________________________  
John Emery II, Council Member     Wayne Hackett, Council Vice-Chair  
  
____________________________________  _____________________________________  
Kieth Bennett, Council Member    Nick Konstantoulakis, Council Member   
 
 
 



           Town of Mechanic Falls 
                                         108 Lewiston Street 
                                   Mechanic Falls, ME  04256 
                             Phone: 345-2871    FAX: 345-9201 
                                      www.MechanicFalls.org 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

A Resolution of the Mechanic Falls Town Council 
November 2019 

 
SUBJECT:   Role of the Town Manager 
 
BACKGROUND  
 
Mechanic Falls Town Charter Adopted 2010 – Amended 2019 
Article 1, Section 2-A: Powers and Duties 
The Town shall have, exercise and enjoy all the rights, immunities, powers, privileges and franchises and shall be 
subject to all the duties, liabilities and obligations provided for herein, or otherwise, pertaining to or incumbent 
upon said Town as a Municipal Corporation or to the inhabitants or municipal authorities thereof; and may enact 
reasonable by-laws, regulations and ordinances for municipal purposes, not inconsistent with the Constitution and 
laws of the State of Maine, and impose penalties for the breach thereof. 
 
BE IT KNOWN: 
 
The Mechanic Falls Town Council believes that the role of the Town Manager, where it is subject to the 
provisions of state statute, Town Charter and employment contract, clearly represents the rights of and the 
structure under which the Mechanic Falls Town Manager is to perform their duties. 
 
Therefore, the Town Council approves the following Resolution.  
 
RESOLUTION 
 
WHEREAS  The Town Manager shall be the Chief Administrative Officer of the Town. The Town Manager 

shall be responsible to the Council for the administration of all Town affairs placed in the Town 
Manager’s charge by or under this Charter or by direction of the Council. (Town Charter Article 
3, Section 2-A); and 

 
WHEREAS  The Town Manager shall direct and supervise the administration of all departments, offices and 

agencies of the Town, except as otherwise provided by this Charter or by law (Town Charter 
Article3, Section 2-D); and 

 
WHEREAS Neither the Council nor any of its members shall direct or request the appointment or removal of 

any person directly or indirectly subordinate to the Town Manager. Except for the purpose of 
inquiry, the Council and its members shall deal with the administrative service solely through the 
Manager and neither the Council nor any member thereof shall give orders to any subordinates of 
the Manager, either publicly or privately (Town Charter Article 3, Section 2-M); and 

 
WHEREAS The Town Manager shall see that all laws, provisions of this Charter and acts of the Council, and 

all acts of those within his or her supervision are faithfully executed (Town Charter Article 3, 
Section 2-F); and 
 



           Town of Mechanic Falls 
                                         108 Lewiston Street 
                                   Mechanic Falls, ME  04256 
                             Phone: 345-2871    FAX: 345-9201 
                                      www.MechanicFalls.org 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

WHEREAS Attempts by Council members to violate any express prohibitions of the Town Charter would be 
recognized as malfeasance; and  
 

WHEREAS Council Members found to have committed malfeasance would be subject to the removal from 
office process outlined in Article 2, Section 2 part C-2 of the Town Charter. 

 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED , that the Mechanic Falls Town Council supports the aforementioned 
resolutions as it applies to the role of the Town Manager while conducting the people’s business of the Town of 
Mechanic Falls.    
 

 Adopted this 4th day of November 2019. 
 

_____________________________________ 
Cathy Fifield, Council Chair 

 
____________________________________  _____________________________________  
John Emery II, Council Member     Wayne Hackett, Council Vice-Chair  
  
____________________________________  _____________________________________  
Kieth Bennett, Council Member    Nick Konstantoulakis, Council Member   
 
 
 


